
From: Charles Kotz  
Sent: Monday, May 2, 2022 5:14 PM 
To: Board <Board@meridian.mi.us> 
Subject: Cornell Elementary 
 
Dear Board: 
 
 Please include this letter in the packet for the May 3, 2022 meeting.  I am writing to express my 
strong opposition to the scheme underway by the Okemos School Board to abandon Cornell 
Elementary, in favor of new construction, to be placed on Powell Road.  The Township Board needs to 
weigh in on this, as this project violates several of the tenets put forward in the Meridian Township 
Master Plan. 
 
1).  This blatantly contradicts any notion of  Meridian Townships claiming to be a ”walkable and bicycle 
friendly” community.  A Powell Road location, NORTH of Grand River Avenue is just ludicrous.  How long 
before a small child is killed attempting to cross this high speed, high traffic volume highway. 
 
2).  Powell Road is one of the last vestiges of rural Meridian Township remaining.  Building a school on 
Powell will forever destroy any semblance of its current character. 
 
3).  Meridian Township claims to be a “Sustainable Community”.  Abandoning a building that can be 
rehabilitated, in favor of raping a natural area, is something that blatantly contradicts the righteous 
claim of “Sustainability”.  
 
4).  Several years ago, when Okemos school student numbers were in decline, the School Board made 
desperate pleas for more family housing, to “fill up” the schools.  The result was the high density 
housing located North of Jolly Rd., extending up to Bennet Road. The developers had a field day, and we 
lost more green space.  Now we are in another supposed crisis, and the schools are “over-full”.  So hat in 
hand, they are coming back, asking for money to build a new school, and put another on moth balls.  I’m 
confident that the developers are salivating at the prospect of doing the same to Powell Road, that they 
did to the area across form the high school.  Irreplaceable green space lost, all due to a lack of a true and 
clear eyed approach to a transient problem. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Charles Kotz 
1282 Silverwood Dr. 
 

mailto:Board@meridian.mi.us










 

May 2, 2022 

Email 
First Class Mail 

Township Board Members 
Charter Township of Meridian 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, MI  48864 

To Supervisor Jackson and Township Board Members: 

Re:
  

Objection to the Ponds Cooperative Homes, Inc. Final Proposed Assessment Roll for the 
Daniels Drain 

 
I am the Board President for the Ponds Cooperative Homes Inc., commonly referred to as The 
Ponds. I write to you both that capacity and as a concerned township citizen. With all due respect 
given to your positions, and in recognition of the difficult task placed before you, I want the record 
to show that.  

1. The work done on the Cooperatives property benefits the entire district. This has been 
conveyed to you numerous times and as recently as the April 12, 2022 meeting by GEI 
Consultants. The Cooperatives' property houses the physical retention receptacle for all 
stormwater runoff in the 219-acre district. That Drainage system removes the burden of 
individual property owners and neighborhoods from having to store this water. It also takes 
their risk of flooding and places at the point of lowest elevation, which is Walden Pond. 
The stormwater flowing into the pond carries the chemical fertilizers, sediments, and road 
salts flowing from the higher elevations fowling the water, killing the wildlife and 
vegetation. You were made aware of this at the April 12 meeting by GEI consultants and 
in previous correspondence from Mr. Barbieri, the Ponds' attorney for the Daniels Drain 
project. 

2. Establishing a "Ponds Special Benefit" based on finished esthetics is arbitrary, 
capricious, and prejudicial. As is customary for the ICDC when a property owner grants 
them unlimited access to the property, the ICDC made plans to replace all of the existing 
plants, trees, soil, and existing structures that were going to be ripped out of the ground or 
destroyed as a result of the construction work. Going line by line to determine the costs of 



restoration of existing structures, soil, trees, and plantings is ludicrous, especially as the 
work done was not under the control or direction of the Ponds and was all related to the 
need for restoring and maintaining the catch basin, complying with wetland preservation 
requirement and reestablishing the wildlife habits destroyed during construction.  

3. The board changed the formula used for assessments without notice or due process 
after the two public review periods had already been held. In the open meeting held on 
April 12, 2022, board members commented that they were going to meet the next day to 
re-evaluate the Proximity factor assigned to the Ponds for the stated purpose of 
significantly increasing our assessment. At that closed meeting, you discarded the P-factor 
and established a "Ponds Benefit Factor." 

4. Two of the main functions of American Governance are to do for its citizens what 
they can't do for themselves and to ensure that all citizens are treated fairly and 
equitably. The ICDC faithfully discharged its duty by performing maintenance and 
upgrades to the Daniels Drain. Through the work of its contractors, who worked diligently 
and efficiently, the ICDC handed the township a smaller bill than was initially projected. 
The township was charged with finding a way to pay that bill. They chose to pay half of it 
utilizing general fund, general-purpose funds, for which the Ponds still expresses gratitude. 
Of the remainder of what was needed, you assessed a substantial portion of that amount to 
one property owner—the Ponds. Unlike traditional housing, the Ponds does not operate for 
profit. By Cooperative Housing laws, we distribute only the essential cost of operation to 
our residents. This provides affordable housing to our shareholders. About ¾ of our 
residents are seniors on fixed incomes or young people with modest incomes who gravitate 
to the Ponds because they can't afford higher housing costs elsewhere in Meridian 
Township. The Ponds board must now, by cooperative housing law, take that $933,992.20 
that you have ascribed to us and apportion that out to our residents. Asking families and 
individuals who live in our 144 small one and 2-bedroom apartments to be responsible for 
$5,958.40 to $6,566.40 is not fair to them. The Ponds has been a part of Meridian Charter 
Township since the mid-80s, and our residents deserve to be treated with the same respect 
and fairness afforded to any other property owner in the district.  

  
Before the April 12 meeting, the Ponds had already advised the township board that we would 
accept the current disproportionate share of the assessment assigned under the formula established 
by the Spicer Group. We did this because we recognized that lowering our amount would have to 
raise the amounts that our neighbors paid, and we didn't want to increase the amount of contention 
that already existed. All we asked was that the mathematical error that showed that we had more 
property benefiting than the amount of property we physically owned be corrected and that our 
rights as property owners be respected.  
 
The township made disparaging remarks on April 12 that characterized the Ponds as 
uncooperative, wealthy condo property owners with a bad attitude knowing full well that even if 
we wanted to, we are under restrictions that do not allow our property to become a quasi-public 
park. Aside from the amount of litter and debris left behind, we had no problem with anyone 
walking peacefully around the pond until our property was repeatedly vandalized, our residents 
began to feel unsafe with the kinds of activities that were occurring on the property by non-
residents, and one of our resident's pets was viciously attacked by a non-resident's dog. When the 
public safety offers who responded to residents' trespassing complaints thought the pond was 



public property and nothing could be done with their complaint; we placed signage advising that 
we were private property to avoid any confusion that might exist. 
  
It is very disconcerting that a local government can take a proposed $429,211.77 assessment 
amount, and last-minute jury rigs the numbers to increase that amount to $933,992.20. To protect 
ours and other property owners rights the Ponds Cooperative Homes, Inc. must oppose this action 
and have asking our legal counsel to assist. 
 

Celeste Bennett, Board President 

The Ponds Cooperative Homes, Inc. 
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